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SUMMARY SHEET  

Enforcement Action Report 
March 2026 

  
 

 
 
For the reporting period of February 1, 2026, through February 28, 2026, the Department of Environmental 
Services issued seventeen (17) Consent Orders with total assessed civil penalties in the amount of one 
hundred sixty-two thousand eight hundred eighty dollars ($162,880.00).  Also, ten 10 Administrative Orders 
with a total assessed penalty of six thousand two hundred twenty-five dollars ($6225.00) were reported 
during this period. 
 
 
 
 

Bureau and Program 
Area 

Administrative 
Orders 

Assessed 
Penalties 

Consent 
Orders 

Assessed 
Penalties 

Land and Waste 
Management 

    

UST Program 1 $6225 3 $21,600 
Hazardous Waste   3 $22,200 
Radiation Protection   1 $8,000 
Water     
Recreational Water   2 $1,480 
Drinking Water   2 $8,000 
Water Pollution   2 $46,450 
Air Quality     
Air Quality   4 $55,150 
Regional & Laboratory 
Services 

    

Onsite Wastewater 9    
TOTAL     
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ENFORCEMENT ACTION REPORT 
March 2026 

 
 
 

BUREAU OF LAND AND WASTE MANAGEMENT 
 

Underground Storage Tank Enforcement 
 
1. Order Type and Number:    Consent Order AF-0001482-UST 

Order Date:     February 10, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Greenville Investment Properties, LLC 
County:      Greenville 
Previous Orders:     N/A 
Permit/ID Number:     10404 

 
Violations Cited: The State Underground Petroleum Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB), 
S.C. Code Ann. §§ 44-2-10 et seq.; and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation, 7 
S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-92, 280.20(c)(1)(ii), (2012 & Supp. 2024).         
 
Summary: The Individual/Entity/Facility owns underground storage tanks in Greenville County, South 
Carolina. On November 6, 2025, the Department conducted an inspection of the Facility and issued a Notice 
of Alleged Violation. The Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the SUPERB Act, and the Regulations as 
follows: failed to maintain overfill prevention equipment. 
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility has corrected all violations.  The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a 
civil penalty in the amount of three thousand, six hundred dollars ($3,600.00). 
 
2. Order Type and Number:    Administrative Order AF-0001457-UST 

Order Date:      February 17, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Sarchi Group LLC 
County:     Jasper 
Previous Orders:     N/A 
Permit/ID Number:     10422 

 
Violations Cited: The State Underground Petroleum Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB), 
S.C. Code Ann. §§ 44-2-10 et seq.; and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation, 7 
S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-92, 280.34(c); 280.40(a); 280.43(d) (2012 & Supp. 2025).        
  
Summary: The Individual/Entity/Facility owns underground storage tanks (UST) in Jasper County, South 
Carolina. On April 18, 2025, the Department conducted an inspection of the Facility and issued a Notice of 
Alleged Violation. The Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the SUPERB Act, and the Regulations as follows: 
failed to provide records to the Department upon request; failed to provide an adequate release detection 
method; and failed to conduct proper release detection using an automatic tank gauge (ATG). 
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Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility is required to submit: a current passing ATG record for the 8,000-gallon 
regular UST at the Facility.  The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a civil penalty in the amount of six 
thousand, two hundred twenty-five dollars ($6,225.00). 
 
3. Order Type and Number:    Consent Order AF-0001523-UST 

Order Date:      February 24, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Murphy Oil USA, Inc. 
County:      Richland 
Previous Orders:     N/A 
Permit/ID Number:     20094 

 
Violations Cited: The State Underground Petroleum Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB), 
S.C. Code Ann. §§ 44-2-10 et seq.; and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation, 7 
S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-92, 280.20(c)(1)(ii), (2012 & Supp. 2025).         
 
Summary: The Individual/Entity/Facility owns underground storage tanks in Richland County, South 
Carolina. On December 29, 2025, the Department conducted an inspection of the Facility and issued a 
Notice of Alleged Violation. The Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the SUPERB Act, and the Regulations 
as follows: failed to maintain overfill prevention equipment. 
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility has corrected all violations.  The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a 
civil penalty in the amount of three thousand, six hundred dollars ($3,600.00). 
 
4. Order Type and Number:    Consent Order AF-0001491-UST 

Order Date:      February 24, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Brar Brothers, Inc.  
County:      Chester 
Previous Orders:     N/A 
Permit/ID Number:     18400 

 
Violations Cited: The State Underground Petroleum Environmental Response Bank Act of 1988 (SUPERB), 
S.C. Code Ann. §§ 44-2-10 et seq.; and the South Carolina Underground Storage Tank Control Regulation, 7 
S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-92, 280.20(c)(1)(ii), (2012 & Supp. 2025).         
 
Summary: The Individual/Entity/Facility owns underground storage tanks in Chester County, South 
Carolina. On November 26, 2025, the Department conducted an inspection of the Facility and issued a 
Notice of Alleged Violation. The Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the SUPERB Act, and the Regulations 
as follows: failed to maintain overfill prevention equipment. 
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility has corrected all violations.  The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a 
civil penalty in the amount of fourteen thousand, four hundred dollars ($14,400.00). 
 

Hazardous Waste Enforcement 
 
5. Order Type and Number:    Consent Order 26-03-HW 
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Order Date:     February 3, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Ralph H. Johnson Veterans Administration  

Health Care System 
County:      Charleston 
Previous Orders:     N/A 
Permit/ID Number: SC4 360 014 621 

 
Violations Cited: The South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Act, S.C. Code Ann.  §§ 44-56-10 et seq. 
(2018) and the South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Regulation, 6 and 7 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-
79 (2012 and Supp. 2021).         
 
Summary: The Individual/Entity/Facility is a generator of hazardous waste located in Charleston County, 
South Carolina. On July 16, 2025, the Department conducted an inspection at the Facility. The 
Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Act, and the 
Hazardous Waste Management Regulations as follows: failed to ensure the hazardous determination for 
each solid waste is made at the point of generation, before any dilution, mixing, or other alteration of the 
waste occurs; failed to ensure that satellite accumulation area containers are at or near any point of 
generation where waste initially accumulate which is under the control of the operator of the process 
generating the waste; failed to ensure that satellite accumulation area containers are marked or labeled 
with the words “Hazardous Waste” and an indication of the hazards of the contents; failed to ensure that 
central accumulation area containers are marked or labeled with the words “Hazardous Waste,” and 
indication of the hazards of the contents, and the date upon which each period of accumulation begins; 
failed to keep containers of non-creditable hazardous waste pharmaceuticals closed and secure in a 
manner that prevents unauthorized access to its contents; failed to label containers used to accumulate 
non-creditable hazardous waste pharmaceuticals as healthcare facilities with the phrase “Hazardous Waste 
Pharmaceuticals”; and failed to demonstrate the length of time that non-creditable hazardous waste 
pharmaceuticals have been accumulating, starting from the date it first becomes a waste. 
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility corrected all violations prior to the issuance of the Consent Order.  The 
Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight thousand dollars ($8,000.00). 
 
6. Order Type and Number:   Consent Order 26-04-HW 

Order Date:      February 12, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    BASF Corporation 
County:      Oconee 
Previous Orders:     N/A 
Permit/ID Number:     SCD 981 866 007 

 
Violations Cited: The South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Act, S.C. Code Ann.  §§ 44-56-10 et seq. 
(2018) and the South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Regulation, 6 and 7 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-
79 (2012 and Supp. 2021).         
 
Summary: The Individual/Entity/Facility is a generator of hazardous waste located in Oconee County, South 
Carolina. On April 10 and May 12, 2025, the Department conducted an inspection at the Facility. The 
Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Act, and the 
Hazardous Waste Management Regulations as follows: failed to, at least weekly, inspect central 
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accumulation areas to look for leaking containers and for deterioration of contains caused by corrosion or 
other factors; failed to post the name and emergency telephone number of the emergency coordinator 
and the location of the fire extinguishers and spill control material next to telephones or in areas directly 
involved in the generation and accumulation of hazardous waste; failed to return hazardous waste to the 
country of export or export it to a third country whenever a transboundary movement of hazardous wastes 
cannot be accepted in accordance with the terms of the contract or the consent(s); failed to include in a 
contract or equivalent arrangement which party to the contract will assume responsibility for alternate 
management of the hazardous wastes if their disposition cannot be carried out as described in the 
notification of intent to export submitted by either the foreign exporter or the importer, specifying that the 
transporter or receiving facility having actual possession or physical control over the hazardous wastes will 
immediately inform the foreign exporter and importer, and the competent authority where the shipment 
is located of the need to arrange alternate management or return; failed to, beginning June 30, 2021, 
submit the top copy of the paper manifest and any paper continuation sheet to the e-Manifest system for 
the purposes of data entry and processing within thirty (30) days of the date of delivery; and failed to list 
the relevant consent number from consent documentation supplied by EPA to the facility for each listed 
waste on the manifest, matched to the relevant list number for the waste from block 9b. 
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility corrected all violations prior to the issuance of the Consent Order. The 
Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a civil penalty in the amount of nine thousand dollars ($9,000.00). 
 
7. Order Type and Number:    Consent Order 26-01-HW 

Order Date:      February 10, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Symrise Inc. 
County:      Berkeley 
Previous Orders:     N/A 
Permit/ID Number:     SCD 070 365 051 

 
Violations Cited: The South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Act, S.C. Code Ann.  §§ 44-56-10 et seq. 
(2018) and the South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Regulation, 6 and 7 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-
79 (2012 and Supp. 2021).         
 
Summary: The Individual/Entity/Facility is a generator of hazardous waste located in Berkley County, South 
Carolina. On July 17, 2025, the Department conducted an inspection at the Facility. The 
Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the South Carolina Hazardous Waste Management Act, and the 
Hazardous Waste Management Regulations as follows: failed to control air pollutant emissions, from a 
container having a design capacity greater than 0.1 cubic meters (m3) and less than or equal to 0.46 m3; 
failed to make an accurate determination that waste was a hazardous waste in order to ensure wastes are 
properly managed according to applicable RCRA regulations; failed to ensure containers holding hazardous 
waste remain closed at all times during accumulation, except when adding, removing, or consolidating 
waste; or when temporary venting of a container is necessary; failed to ensure containers were labeled 
with the words “Hazardous Waste”; an indication of the hazards of the contents and the date upon which 
each period of accumulation begins clearly visible for inspection on each container; and failed to keep a 
copy of each manifest signed in accordance with section 262.23(a) onsite for three (3) years or until they 
received a signed copy from the designated facility which received the waste. 
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Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility has corrected all violations prior to the issuance of the Order. The 
Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a civil penalty in the amount of five thousand, two hundred dollars 
($5,200.00). 
 

Radiation Protection Enforcement 
 
8. Order Type and Number:    Consent Order 26-01-RP 

Order Date:      February 24, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Building and Earth Sciences, Inc. 
County:      Aiken 
Previous Orders:     N/A 
Permit/ID Number:     SC Radioactive Material License 1001 

 
Violations Cited: The Atomic Energy and Radiation Control Act, S.C. Code Ann. § 13-7-10 et seq. (2017) and 
the Radioactive Materials (Title A) Regulations, 6 S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-63 (2023 Supp. 2024).         
 
Summary: Building and Earth Sciences, Inc. is located in Aiken County, South Carolina. The Department 
conducted an inspection at the Facility on August 22, 2025. The Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the 
Atomic Energy and Radiation Control Act, and the Radioactive Materials (Title A) Regulations as follows: 
failed to maintain records of individual monitoring results between October 18, 2022, and August 22, 2025; 
failed to maintain records showing receipt, transfer, and disposal of several devices containing licensed 
radioactive material; and failed to maintain a Radiation Safety Officer as stated on the license between mid 
to late 2024, and August 22, 2025. 
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility has corrected all violations.  The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a 
civil penalty in the amount of eight thousand dollars ($8,000.00). 
 

BUREAU OF WATER 
 

Recreational Waters Enforcement 
 
9. Order Type and Number:    Consent Order 26-005-RW 

Order Date:      February 5, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    1735 Ashley Hall Rd. Property, LLC 

The Magnolia by Trion Living 
County:     Charleston 
Previous Orders:     None 
Permit/ID Number:     10-018-1 

 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51.J, Public Swimming Pools Regulation. 
 
Summary: 1735 Ashley Hall Rd. Property, LLC owns and is responsible for the proper operation and 
maintenance of a pool located in Charleston County, South Carolina. The Department conducted 
inspections on May 30, 2025, and July 8, 2025, and violations were issued for failure to properly operate 
and maintain. The Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: 
the lifeline was not attached to the pool wall; the deck was uneven with sharp edges; the skimmer baskets 
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were broken; there was no drinking water fountain; the gate did not self-close and latch; the facility could 
not produce current valid documentation of pool operator certification; the pool operator of record 
information was not posted to the public; the log book was not maintained on a daily basis; and the 
recirculation and filtration system was not operating. 
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility has corrected all violations.  The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a 
civil penalty in the amount of six hundred eighty dollars ($680.00). 
 
10. Order Type and Number:    Consent Order 26-006-RW 

Order Date:      February 13, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Aubrey Kohut, Individually and  

d.b.a. Wildwood Ranch/Wildwood Ranch 
County:      Union 
Previous Orders:     None 
Permit/ID Number:     None 

 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-51.B.2, Public Swimming Pools Regulation. 
 
Summary: Aubrey Kohut, Individually and d.b.a. Wildwood Ranch owns and is responsible for obtaining 
from the Department the proper permit and operational approval for the construction and operation of a 
pool located in Union County, South Carolina. The Department conducted a complaint inspection on 
October 7, 2025, and it was discovered that a pool had been constructed and operated and a permit to 
construct and approval to operate had not been issued by the Department. The Individual/Entity/Facility 
has violated the Public Swimming Pools Regulation as follows: failed to obtain a permit to construct and 
operational approval from the Department prior to the construction and operation of a public swimming 
pool.  
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility is required to: submit a corrective action plan with a schedule to 
resolve the unpermitted construction and unapproved operation of the pool.  The Individual/Entity/Facility 
shall pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight hundred dollars ($800.00). 
 

Drinking Water Enforcement 
 
11. Order Type and Number:    Consent Order 26-002-DW 

Order Date:      February 4, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Town of Whitmire 
County:      Newberry  
Previous Orders:     None 
Permit/ID Number:     3610004 

 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-58.5.P(2)(b), State Primary Drinking Water Regulation. 
 
Summary: The Town of Whitmire owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of a 
public water system (PWS) located in Newberry County, South Carolina. On December 18, 2025, a violation 
was issued as a result of a review of monitoring records. The Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the State 
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Primary Drinking Water Regulation as follows: the PWS exceeded the maximum contaminant level (MCL) 
for total trihalomethanes (TTHM). 
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility is required to: submit a corrective action plan with a schedule to 
address the causes of the TTHM MCL exceedance. The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a stipulated 
penalty in the amount of four thousand dollars ($4,000.00) should any requirement of the Order not be 
met. 
 
12. Order Type and Number:    Consent Order 26-003-DW 

Order Date:     February 13, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Bucksport Water System, Inc. 
County:      Horry 
Previous Orders:     CO 21-016-DW ($4,000.00); CO 24-008-DW ($8,000.00) 
Permit/ID Number:     2620003 

 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-58.5.P(2)(b), State Primary Drinking Water Regulation. 
 
Summary: Bucksport Water System, Inc. owns and is responsible for the proper operation and 
maintenance of a public water system (PWS) located in Horry County, South Carolina. On December 3, 
2025, a violation was issued as a result of review of monitoring records. The Individual/Entity/Facility has 
violated the State Primary Drinking Water Regulation as follows: the PWS exceeded the maximum 
contaminant level (MCL) for total trihalomethanes (TTHM). 
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility is required to: submit a corrective action plan with a schedule to 
address the causes of the TTHM MCL exceedance. The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a civil penalty in 
the amount of eight thousand dollars ($8,000.00) and pay a stipulated penalty in the amount of eight 
thousand dollars ($8,000.00) should any requirement of the Order not be met. 
 

Water Pollution Enforcement 
 
13. Order Type and Number:    Consent Order 26-003-W 

Order Date:      February 3, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    City of Bennettsville 

Bennettsville Wastewater Treatment Plant 
County:      Marlboro 
Previous Orders:     None 
Permit/ID Number:     SC0025178 

 
Violations Cited: Pollution Control Act, S.C. Code Ann. § 48-1-110(d), and the Water Pollution Control  
Permits Regulation, S.C. Code Ann. 61-9.122.41(a). 
 
Summary: City of Bennettsville owns and is responsible for the proper operation and maintenance of 
Bennettsville Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) located in Marlboro County, South Carolina. On March 
4, 2025, a Notice of Violation was issued for exceedance of the permitted discharge limits for Total 
Suspended Solids Percent Removal (TSS % removal) reported on the discharge monitoring reports 
submitted to the Department. The Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the Pollution Control Act, and the 
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Water Pollution Control Permits Regulation as follows: failed to comply with the permitted effluent 
limitations for TSS % removal. 
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility is required to: submit written notification of the planned completion 
date for all corrective actions necessary to resolve the effluent violations for TSS % removal; conduct a 
three (3) month monitoring compliance confirmation period upon completion of corrective actions; and 
implement engineered upgrades to the WWTP should additional violations be observed during the 
compliance confirmation period. The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a civil penalty in the amount of six 
thousand dollars ($6,000.00). 
 
14. Order Type and Number:   Consent Order 26-004-W 

Order Date:      February 13, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Town of Saluda Commission of Public Works  

Town of Saluda Wastewater Treatment Plant 
County:      Saluda  
Previous Orders:     N/A 
Permit/ID Number:     SC0022381  

 
Violations Cited: Pollution Control Act, S.C. Code Ann. § 48-1-110(d), the Water Pollution Control Permits 
Regulation, S.C. Code Ann. Regs.61-9.122.41(a), and Standards for Wastewater Facility Construction, S.C. 
Code Ann Regs. 61-67.300.C.3 and C.7. 
 
Summary: The Town of Saluda Commission of Public Works (Saluda CPW) owns and is responsible for the 
proper operation and maintenance of the Town of Saluda Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) located in 
Saluda County, South Carolina. Between January 27 and January 29, 2025, the Department conducted a 
Compliance Sampling Inspection (CSI), on March 20, 2025, an Operation and Maintenance inspection was 
conducted, and on October 14, 2025, a Collection System Operation and Maintenance inspection was 
conducted.  The Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the Pollution Control Act, the Water Pollution Control 
Permits Regulation, and the Standards for Wastewater Facility Construction Regulation, as follows: failed 
to comply with the permitted effluent limitations; failed to provide and maintain records pertaining to 
sludge disposal, monitoring, and facility treatment inspections; failed to operate and maintain facility 
equipment in good working order; and failed to prevent releases to the environment, including waters of 
the State. 
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility is required to: submit a Closure Plan and a satellite sewer system 
permit application and provide written and photographic documentation demonstrating that all pump 
stations are functioning and operating in compliance with the Permit. The Individual/Entity/Facility shall 
pay a civil penalty in the amount of forty thousand four hundred and fifty dollars ($40,450.00).  
 

BUREAU OF AIR QUALITY 
 
15. Order Type/Order Number:    CO 26-001-A 

Order Date:      February 5, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Greenwood Fabricating & Plating, LLC 
County:      Greenwood 
Previous Orders:     N/A 
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Permit/ID Number:     1240-0153 
 
Violations Cited: U.S. EPA regulations at 40 CFR Part 63 and S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.63, Subpart 
WWWWWW, National Emission Standards for Hazardous Air Pollutants: Area Source Standards for Plating 
and Polishing Operations (collectively, “Subpart WWWWWW”); S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.1, Sections 
II(A)(1)(a) and II(F)(1); and S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.1, Section II, Permit Requirements.  
 
Summary: Greenwood Fabricating & Plating, LLC (“Individual/Entity/Facility”) fabricates and plate metal 
parts for the automotive and electrical industries at its facility located in Greenwood County, South 
Carolina. On March 11, 2024, the Department conducted an investigation at the Individual/Entity/Facility. 
On June 27, 2025, the Individual/Entity/Facility submitted a permit modification request to the Department.  
The Individual/Entity has violated U.S. EPA and South Carolina Air Pollution Control Regulations, as follows:  
failed to comply with the emissions control requirements (wetting agent/fume suppressant; emissions 
control device; or tank surface cover) when operating affected electrolytic process tanks, including 
chromate and nickel tanks associated with plating line no. 1 and 5; failed to submit an Initial Notification to 
the Department when it became subject to Subpart WWWWWW; failed to submit a Notification of 
Compliance Status to the Department upon initial startup of an affected source and within thirty (30) days 
after making changes to its list of affected sources; failed to conduct annual facility reviews of processes, 
equipment, and materials for calendar years 2022, 2023, and 2024; failed to apply for and obtain a 
construction permit and operating permit from the Department prior to installing and operating a device 
for the control of air contaminant discharges, specifically the demister on the manganese phosphate tank 
associated with plating line no. 4. 
 
Action: Upon execution of this order comply with all applicable standards, limitations, and record keeping 
and reporting requirements set forth in Subpart WWWWW; and, within thirty (30) days of the execution 
date of this Consent Order, submit a construction permit application to the Department via ePermitting for 
the installation of the control device (demister mesh pad mist eliminator) on the manganese phosphate 
tank associated with plating line no. 4. Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a civil penalty in the amount of 
twenty-one thousand dollars ($21,000.00). 
 
16. Order Type/Order Number:    CO 26-002-A 

Order Date:      February 13, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Craig Banks, individually and  

d/b/a Banks Brothers Asphalt Paving 
County:      Greenville 
Previous Orders:     10-013-A, 15-042-A 
Permit/ID Number:     9900-0454 

 
Violations Cited: U.S. EPA 40 CFR Part 60 and S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.60, Standards of Performance for 
Hot Mix Asphalt Facilities (collectively, “Subpart I”) and S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.1, Section II, Permit 
Requirements. 
 
Summary: Mr. Craig Banks owns and operates Banks Brothers Asphalt Paving (collectively 
“Individual/Entity/Facility”), a drum mix asphalt plant located in Greenville County, South Carolina. On 
March 19, 2025, the Department received the results of a Department-approved source test conducted on 
February 18, 2025, for PM emissions from the dryer burner. The Individual/Entity has violated U.S. EPA and 
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South Carolina Air Pollution Control Regulations as follows: Failed to limit PM emissions from the dryer 
burner to 0.04 gr/dscf on February 18, 2025. 
 
Action: Upon execution of this order, limit PM emissions in accordance with emissions limitations as 
specified in Subpart I. The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a civil penalty in the amount of eight thousand 
dollars ($8,000.00). 
 
17. Order Type and Number:   CO 26-003-A 

Order Date:      02/17/26 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    CompX Security Products Inc. 
County:      Greenville 
Previous Orders:     None 
Permit/ID Number:     1200-0107  

 
Violations Cited: U.S. EPA 40 CFR 63, Subpart N, and S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.63, Subpart N, National 
Emission Standards for Chromium Emissions from Hard and Decorative Chromium Electroplating and 
Chromium Anodizing Tanks (collectively “Subpart N”) and S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.1, Section II, Permit 
Requirements. 
 
Summary: CompX Security Products Inc. (“Individual/Entity/Facility”) manufactures security locks for 
residential, commercial, and industrial use at its facility located in Greenville County, South Carolina. The 
Individual/Entity/Facility submitted multiple letters, reports, and source test results to the Department over 
the period of July 8, 2024, to March 27, 2025. The Individual/Entity has violated U.S. EPA and South Carolina 
Air Pollution Control Regulations as follows: failed to limit the surface tension of the suppressant to 33 
dynes/cm, as measured by a tensiometer on June 25, 2024; failed to conduct and record monitoring of 
surface tension of the electroplating or anodizing bath every four (4) hours of operation to ensure the 
maximum surface tension did not exceed 40 dynes/cm, as measured by a stalagmometer, or 33 dynes/cm, 
as measured by a tensiometer, for the period of August 2023 to June 2024; failed to maintain accurate 
records of the date and time that fume suppressants are added to the electroplating or anodizing bath for 
the period of August 2023 to June 2024; and failed to limit chromium emissions to 0.007 mg/dscm, as 
documented during the November 19, 2024, source test. 
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility is required to: Henceforth, conduct and record monitoring of surface 
tension of the electroplating or anodizing bath every four (4) hours of tank operation as directed by Subpart 
N to ensure the maximum surface tension does not exceed 40 dynes/cm, as measured by a stalagmometer, 
or 33 dynes/cm, as measured by a tensiometer, or site-specific operating parameters established through 
source testing, maintain accurate records of the date and time that fume suppressants are added to the 
electroplating or anodizing bath, and limit chromium emissions in accordance with limitations established 
through Subpart N and the Permit. The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a penalty in the amount of 
seventeen thousand one hundred and fifty dollars ($17,150.00).  
 
 
18. Order Type/Order Number:    CO 26-004-A 

Order Date:      02/25/2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Smyrna Ready Mix Concrete, LLC – Beaufort Facility 
County:      Beaufort 
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Previous Orders:     N/A 
Permit/ID Number:     9900-0754 

 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-62.1, Section II(A)(1)(a) and II(F)(1); and, S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-
62.1, Section II, Permit Requirements.  
 
Summary: SRM – Beaufort (“Individual/Entity/Facility”) operates a concrete batch plant in Beaufort County, 
South Carolina. On April 22, 2025, the Department conducted an inspection at the Individual/Entity/Facility. 
The Individual/Entity has violated South Carolina Air Pollution Control Regulations as follows: failed to 
obtain a construction permit and operating permit prior to installing and operating the multiple 
unpermitted silos; failed to record daily concrete production during source operation on June 30, 2025; 
failed to maintain records of daily concrete production; failed to maintain records of weekly visual 
inspections of the truck/mixer load-outs and associated control devices; failed to maintain records of daily 
visual inspections of its silos and associated control devices, and; failed to maintain a copy of the exempt 
source list onsite at the time of the April 22, 2025, inspection.  
 
Action: Following the execution of this Order: Henceforth apply for and obtain a construction permit from 
the Department prior to constructing, altering, or adding to a source of air contaminants; and, within thirty 
(30) days of the execution of this Order, pay to the Department a civil penalty in the amount of nine 
thousand dollars ($9,000.00). 
 

BUREAU OF REGIONAL AND LABORATORY SERVICES 
 

On-Site Wastewater Enforcement 
 
19. Order Type and Number:    Administrative Order AF-0001486 

Order Date:      February 3, 2026  
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Michael R. Gibson 
County:      Pickens 
Previous Orders:     None  
Permit Number:     None  

 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-56. 
 
Summary: Michael R. Gibson owns property located in Pickens County, South Carolina. The Department 
conducted an investigation on November 19, 2025, and observed domestic wastewater discharging onto 
the surface of the ground. The Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the South Carolina Onsite Wastewater 
(OSWW) Systems regulation as follows: failed to ensure that no septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, 
or sewage was discharged to the surface of the ground without an appropriate permit from the 
Department.  
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility is required to repair the OSWW system within five (5) days to effectively 
stop the discharging of septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, or sewage to the surface of the ground; 
or immediately vacate the residence to eliminate the flow of domestic wastewater to the OSWW system. 
The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a suspended penalty in the amount of five thousand dollars 
($5,000.00) should any requirement of the Order not be met. 
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20. Order Type and Number:    Administrative Order AF-0001487 

Order Date:     February 3, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Orangeburg Mobile Home Park, LLC  
County:      Orangeburg 
Previous Orders:     None  
Permit Number:     None  

 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-56. 
 
Summary: Orangeburg Mobile Home Park, LLC owns property located in Orangeburg County, South 
Carolina. The Department conducted an investigation on December 2, 2025, and observed domestic 
wastewater discharging onto the surface of the ground. The Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the South 
Carolina Onsite Wastewater (OSWW) Systems regulation as follows: failed to ensure that no septic tank 
effluent, domestic wastewater, or sewage was discharged to the surface of the ground without an 
appropriate permit from the Department.  
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility is required to repair the OSWW system within five (5) days to effectively 
stop the discharging of septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, or sewage to the surface of the ground; 
or immediately vacate the residence to eliminate the flow of domestic wastewater to the OSWW system. 
The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a suspended penalty in the amount of five thousand dollars 
($5,000.00) should any requirement of the Order not be met. 
 
21. Order Type and Number:    Administrative Order AF-0001489 

Order Date:      February 3, 2026  
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Yes! Real Estate Investors, LLC  
County:      Lexington 
Previous Orders:     None  
Permit Number:     None  

 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-56.  
 
Summary: Yes! Real Estate Investors, LLC owns property located in Lexington County, South Carolina. The 
Department conducted an investigation on November 12, 2025, and observed a camper being occupied 
for more than two (2) hours per day without being connected to an approved means of domestic 
wastewater treatment and disposal. The Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the South Carolina Onsite 
Wastewater (OSWW) Systems regulation as follows: failed to ensure that a building or dwelling that is 
occupied for more than two (2) hours per day is connected to an approved means of domestic wastewater 
treatment and disposal.  
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility is required to apply for a permit to construct an OSWW system within 
five (5) days and install the OSWW system within ten (10) days of the issuance of the permit to effectively 
stop the discharging of septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, or sewage to the surface of the ground; 
or immediately vacate or remove the camper. The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a suspended penalty 
in the amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) should any requirement of the Order not be met.  
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22. Order Type and Number:    Administrative Order AF-0001496 
Order Date:      February 3, 2026  
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Janet Robinson   
County:      Anderson 
Previous Orders:    None  
Permit Number:     None  

 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-56. 
 
Summary: Janet Robinson owns property located in Anderson County, South Carolina. The Department 
conducted an investigation on December 1, 2025, and observed domestic wastewater discharging onto the 
surface of the ground. The Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the South Carolina Onsite Wastewater 
(OSWW) Systems regulation as follows: failed to ensure that no septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, 
or sewage was discharged to the surface of the ground without an appropriate permit from the 
Department.  
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility is required to repair the OSWW system within five (5) days to effectively 
stop the discharging of septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, or sewage to the surface of the ground; 
or immediately vacate the residence to eliminate the flow of domestic wastewater to the OSWW system. 
The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a suspended penalty in the amount of five thousand dollars 
($5,000.00) should any requirement of the Order not be met. 
 
23. Order Type and Number:    Administrative Order AF-0001498 

Order Date:     February 3, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Russell Powell 
County:      Richland 
Previous Orders:     None  
Permit Number:     None  

 
Violations Cited: S.C. Pollution Control Act. 
 
Summary: Russell Powell owns property located in Richland County, South Carolina. The Department 
conducted an investigation on September 22, 2025, and observed domestic wastewater discharging onto 
the surface of the ground. The Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the South Carolina Onsite Wastewater 
(OSWW) Systems regulation as follows: failed to ensure that no septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, 
or sewage was discharged to the surface of the ground without an appropriate permit from the 
Department.  
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility is required to repair the OSWW system within five (5) days to effectively 
stop the discharging of septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, or sewage to the surface of the ground; 
or immediately vacate the residence to eliminate the flow of domestic wastewater to the OSWW system. 
The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a suspended penalty in the amount of five thousand dollars 
($5,000.00) should any requirement of the Order not be met. 
 
24. Order Type and Number:    Administrative Order AF-0001490 

Order Date:      February 3, 2026  
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Individual/Entity/Facility:    White Bluff, LLC  
County:     Orangeburg 
Previous Orders:     None  
Permit Number:     None  

 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-56.  
 
Summary: White Bluff, LLC owns property located in Orangeburg County, South Carolina. The Department 
conducted an investigation on October 6, 2025, and observed a camper being occupied for more than two 
(2) hours per day without being connected to an approved means of domestic wastewater treatment and 
disposal. The Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the South Carolina Onsite Wastewater (OSWW) Systems 
regulation as follows: failed to ensure that a building or dwelling that is occupied for more than two (2) 
hours per day is connected to an approved means of domestic wastewater treatment and disposal.  
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility is required to apply for a permit to construct an OSWW system within 
five (5) days and install the OSWW system within ten (10) days of the issuance of the permit to effectively 
stop the discharging of septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, or sewage to the surface of the ground; 
or immediately vacate or remove the camper. The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a suspended penalty 
in the amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) should any requirement of the Order not be met.  
 
25. Order Type and Number:    Administrative Order AF-0001510 

Order Date:      February 3, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Angel Thompson 
County:      Cherokee 
Previous Orders:     None  
Permit Number:     None  

 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-56.  
 
Summary: Angel Thompson owns property located in Cherokee County, South Carolina. The Department 
conducted an investigation on November 21, 2025, and observed domestic wastewater discharging onto 
the surface of the ground. The Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the South Carolina Onsite Wastewater 
(OSWW) Systems regulation as follows: failed to ensure that no septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, 
or sewage was discharged to the surface of the ground without an appropriate permit from the 
Department.  
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility is required to repair the OSWW system within five (5) days to effectively 
stop the discharging of septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, or sewage to the surface of the ground; 
or immediately vacate the residence to eliminate the flow of domestic wastewater to the OSWW system. 
The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a suspended penalty in the amount of five thousand dollars 
($5,000.00) should any requirement of the Order not be met. 
 
 
26. Order Type and Number:    Administrative Order AF-0001513 

Order Date: February 3, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Peggy Terry, Heir and Assign  
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of the Revocable Trust Agreement for  
William Ralph Terry  

County:      Pickens 
Previous Orders:     None  
Permit Number:     None  

 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-56.  
 
Summary: Peggy Terry, Heir and Assign of the Revocable Trust Agreement for William Ralph Terry, owns 
property located in Pickens County, South Carolina. The Department conducted an investigation on 
November 24, 2025, and observed a camper being occupied for more than two (2) hours per day without 
being connected to an approved means of domestic wastewater treatment and disposal. The 
Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the South Carolina Onsite Wastewater (OSWW) Systems regulation as 
follows: failed to ensure that a building or dwelling that is occupied for more than two (2) hours per day is 
connected to an approved means of domestic wastewater treatment and disposal.  
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility is required to apply for a permit to construct an OSWW system within 
five (5) days and install the OSWW system within ten (10) days of the issuance of the permit to effectively 
stop the discharging of septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, or sewage to the surface of the ground; 
or immediately vacate or remove the camper. The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a suspended penalty 
in the amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) should any requirement of the Order not be met.  
 
27. Order Type and Number:    Administrative Order AF-0001511 

Order Date:      February 23, 2026 
Individual/Entity/Facility:    Adam D. Wilkes  
County:      Florence 
Previous Orders:     None  
Permit Number:    None  

 
Violations Cited: S.C. Code Ann. Regs. 61-56.  
 
Summary: Adam D. Wilkes owns property located in Florence County, South Carolina. The Department 
conducted an investigation on October 8, 2025, and observed a camper being occupied for more than two 
(2) hours per day without being connected to an approved means of domestic wastewater treatment and 
disposal. The Individual/Entity/Facility has violated the South Carolina Onsite Wastewater (OSWW) Systems 
regulation as follows: failed to ensure that a building or dwelling that is occupied for more than two (2) 
hours per day is connected to an approved means of domestic wastewater treatment and disposal.  
 
Action: The Individual/Entity/Facility is required to apply for a permit to construct an OSWW system within 
five (5) days and install the OSWW system within ten (10) days of the issuance of the permit to effectively 
stop the discharging of septic tank effluent, domestic wastewater, or sewage to the surface of the ground; 
or immediately vacate or remove the camper. The Individual/Entity/Facility shall pay a suspended penalty 
in the amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) should any requirement of the Order not be met.  


